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FORT HANCOCK, NURSES’ GARAGE
(Fort Hancock, Building No. 328)
HABS No. NJ-1209-F

On Pennington Drive, West of Hartshorne Drive at the Fort Hancock Proving
Ground, Fort Hancock, Monmouth County, New Jersey

USGS Sandy hook, NJ-NY Quadrangle
Universal Transverse Mercator Coordinates:
18 584400 4478700

This World War II era wood frame structure has been identified as a
contributing structure to the Fort Hancock and Sandy Hook Proving Ground
Historic District because of the role that Fort Hancock played during World
War II as the headquarters for the harbor defenses of New York and the New
York Subsector. During 1945 and 1946 Fort Hancock served the nation as a
primary reception center for troops returning from European theater of
operations, before being demobilized and discharged. Between 1943 and 1948
the Sandy Hook batteries, because of development of the atomic bomb and
missiles and the successful application of new principals of amphibious
warfare, were phased out and disarmed. This building was typical of the
temporary wood frame structures built to shelter the automobiles of base
employees who lived off base throughout the United States during World War
II.

This six-car garage is built with an area of 1,120 square feet at a cost of $900.
The wooden walls are framed with 2 x 4s enclosed with 6" wide clapboard
siding, and are supported by concrete faced brick foundations. The site has a
gravel drive and the original garage floor is gravel.

The current roofing is grey-green asphaltic shingles over 4" sheathing boards
supported by 2 x 6 rafters every 24" on center. The rafters rest on a 4 x 6 top
plate. A -2 x 6 sill plate rests atop the foundation wall. The plates, rafters,
and roofing are in fair condition. The garage doors are wood panels and are
frozen in position due to rust.

Overall, the structure is in poor structural condition. The roof is sagging and
the walls are deteriorating and need painting. Should the structure be left
open, it could propose a hazard to visitors and park staff. The structure is
currently scheduled for demolition.
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The permanent post of Fort Hancock consisted primarily of yellow brick
structures built from 1896 to 1939 to house the army units assigned to the
Sandy Hook Coastal Batteries defending New York harbor. With the advent
of World War II the post was greatly expanded to accommodate the increased
demands of the expanding army.

Building No.328 was built to provide shelter for automobiles of staff that
might not live on base.
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